
 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 

FOR 
 

Tuesday, October 2, 2012 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
    
 

 
6:30pm City Council Work Session 

 
7:00pm Regular City Council Meeting 

 

 



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
October 2, 2012 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
6:30 PM WORK SESSION 
 
 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
    
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT: 

 
A. Approval of September 18, 2012 City Council Meeting Minutes 

 
5. PRESENTATIONS 

 
A. Eagle Scout Recognition 
 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A. Ordinance 2012-012 Approving an amendment to the Transportation System Plan and 

Comprehensive Plan regarding the functional classification of Cedar Brook Way 
(Julia Hajduk, Planning Manager) 

 
8. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 
9. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
10. ADJOURN 

 
How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 
City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Friday prior to a Council 
meeting. Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the YMCA, the Senior Center, and the City's bulletin board at 
Albertson’s. Council meeting materials are available to the public at the Library.   
 
To Schedule a Presentation before Council: 
If you would like to appear before Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of your presentation and the date you wish to 
appear to the City Recorder Sylvia Murphy by calling 503-625-4246 or by e-mail to: murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov 

 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
October 2, 2012 

 
 

6:30pm City Council Work Session 
 

7:00pm Regular City Council Meeting 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140 

1

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
September 18, 2012 
Page 1 of 8 

 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

September 18, 2012 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 6:43 pm. 
 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Dave Grant, Councilors Matt Langer, Bill 
Butterfield, Robyn Folsom and Krisanna Clark. Councilor Linda Henderson arrived at 6:50 pm. 

 
3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, Community Development Director Tom Pessemier, 

Planning Manager Julia Hajduk, Finance Director Craig Gibons, City Engineer Bob Galati and City 
Recorder Sylvia Murphy.  

 
4. TOPICS DISCUSSED:  

 
A. TSP Amendment Cedar Brook Way: Julia Hajduk presented a power point presentation (see 

record, Exhibit A), discussion followed. 
 

5. ADJOURN: 
 
Mayor Mays adjourned the work session at 7:00 pm and convened to a regular Council session. 
 

 
 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 7:05 pm. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

 
3. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Dave Grant, Councilors Matt Langer,  

Linda Henderson, Bill Butterfield, Robyn Folsom and Krisanna Clark. 

4. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Public 
Works Director Craig Sheldon, Finance Director Craig Gibons, Community Development Director 
Tom Pessemier, IT Director Brad Crawford, Police Captain Mark Daniel, City Engineer Bob Galati, 
Civil Engineer Jason Waters and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. City Attorney Paul Elsner. 
 
Mayor Mays addressed the Consent Agenda and asked for a motion. 

5. CONSENT: 
 
A. Approval of August 21, 2012 City Council Meeting Minutes 

2



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
September 18, 2012 
Page 2 of 8 

B. Resolution 2012-047 Authorizing the City Manager to sign the 2012 IGA with Washington 

County for the purpose of continued participation in the Urban Area Security Initiative 

(UASI) 

 

C. Resolution 2012-048 Appointing Bryce Keicher to the Library Advisory Board 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON TO ADOPT THE CONSENT AGENDA, 

SECONDED BY COUNCILOR BILL BUTTERFIELD. ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN 

FAVOR. 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

6. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Proclamation Oregon Days of Culture 

 
Mayor Mays read the proclamation proclaiming October 1-8, 2012 as Oregon Days of Culture and 
stated this marks the 10th anniversary. He stated the Oregon Cultural Trust has invested 
$548,257.34 in Sherwood and Washington County. 
 

B. Recognition of Robin Hood Festival Association Volunteers 
 
Mayor Mays recognized Robin Hood Festival Association President Phil McGuigan and Vice 
President Alice Thornton for their leadership and dedication to the community through many 
years of volunteering and management of the organization. Mr. McGuigan came forward and 
thanked city staff, the public works department and Council President Grant for their participation 
and support of events.  
 
Council President Grant commented regarding his participation as Liaison to the Association and 
commended the volunteers for their hands-on work and contributions to bringing events to 
Sherwood, including the Holiday Tree Lighting Ceremony. 
 
Mayor Mays presented Certificates of Appreciation to Phil and Alice for their leadership and 
dedication to the Sherwood community and presented Certificates of Appreciation to other lead 
volunteers that oversee all aspects of the annual Robin Hood Festival and Holiday Tree Lighting 
event.  
 

C. Swearing in of Police Officer 
 

Chief Jeff Groth administered the Oath of Office to newly promoted Sergeant Nathan Powell and 
stated Sergeant Powell came to the City of Sherwood in 2001 as a Reserve Officer and was hired 
full time as a Police Officer in April 2002. Chief Groth stated Sergeant Powell has served in many 
capacities  including FTO (Field Training Officer), Canine Handler, Taser Instructor and Major 
Crimes Detective. Chief Groth stated Nathan finished at the top in a competitive promotion 
process and was promoted to Sergeant on September 2, 2012. Chief Groth stated Sergeant 
Powell has an Associate’s Degree in Criminal Justice and resides in Newberg. 

 

 Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

 

3



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
September 18, 2012 
Page 3 of 8 

7. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

Lisa Thomas with Habitat for Humanity, 620 N. Morton, Newberg came forward and provided the 
Council with information on the organization and stated they serve Newberg, Dayton, Dundee, St. 
Paul and Sherwood. Ms. Thomas informed the Council they have built 18 houses since 1995 and 
they are a non-profit organization. Ms. Thomas explained their family selection process and 
reminded the Council of an invitation to all elected officials to participate in a Building Day Project 
to be held in Newberg on Saturday September 22nd at the Newberg Animal Shelter.  

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Resolution 2012-049 Authorizing the City Manager to award a construction contract for the 

SW Gleneagle Drive Pavement Rehabilitation Project 
 

Jason Waters Civil Engineer came forward and stated the project is to build Gleneagle Drive to 
full depth, cement treating the base and putting in four inches of new asphalt. Jason stated 
funding will come from the street maintenance fees that are in the utility bills. Jason informed the 
Council the road is in poor condition and it’s a priority to get it done this year. Jason said the City 

solicited bids and received five bids, which are attached to the staff report. Jason said the bids 
came in well under the engineers estimate and there’s funds left to go towards another project 
next year. Jason said staff will be working on 12th street to possibly get it done next year. Jason 
informed Council the city has completed the seven day protest period and notification has been 
sent to the residents and notices will be sent in the form of door hangers this week in hopes that 
the project can begin next week.  

Mayor Mays thanked Jason and commented regarding the favorable bid being below the 
engineers estimate and the importance of reinvesting in our community. 

With no Council questions or comments, Mayor Mays asked for a motion. 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2012-049, 

SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KRISANNA CLARK, ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN 

FAVOR. 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

B. Resolution 2012-050 Authorizing the City Manager to execute a construction contract for 
the Ladd Hill Storm Restoration Project 
 
Jason Waters Civil Engineer stated this project is a top priority as we have flooding issues in the 
area. Jason informed the Council the city has received the DSL work permit and staff is working 
to expedite the contract award before the wet weather arrives. Jason informed the Council the 
staff report and legislation was prepared before the bids were opened and the city opened four 
bids on September 13 and all bids came in over the engineers estimate. Jason explained staff 
had $140,000 estimated for the base bid and $173,000 estimated to include the swale on the east 
side of Ladd Hill Road. Jason stated we have not issued a notice of intent to award, as indicated 
in the staff report. Jason said currently we are negotiating with the contractor and per ORS we 
are allowed to negotiate with the apparent low bidder, if all the bids come in over the estimate, as 
long as we are not affecting the field of competition. Jason stated we received a low bid from 

4



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
September 18, 2012 
Page 4 of 8 

C&M Excavation Utilities, LLC, formally C&M Construction in Sherwood, they submitted the 
lowest responsive bid at $195,950.50 for the base bid and $223,315.50 for the work including the 
work on the east side of Ladd Hill Road. Jason stated staff investigated the discrepancies in the 
bids and found that the plantings alone in the water quality pond, the wetlands and vegetative 
corridor had bids ranging from $54,000 to $95,000. Jason stated our engineers estimate was at 
$33,000 for the planting alone and there was a misinterpretation of the planting bid item. Jason 
explained staff concluded that all the discrepancies that put us over the estimate were related to 
those three bid items. Jason stated before staff negotiated with C&M they compared and 
removed these three items from the bids to allow staff to compare all the possibilities of fairness 
and we still determined that C&M Construction was still the apparent low bid without those items 
at $101,000 and in staff’s analysis we took the lowest bid prices for each of those and looked at 

all the possibilities and with each scenario C&M was still the apparent low bid, we then 
determined that we could proceed with negotiations with C&M without initiating any protest. 

Jason stated after determining staff could negotiate with C&M, staff spoke with the Public Works 
Director and he confirmed there was $173,000 available in the storm system replacement repair 
fund. Public Works Director Craig Sheldon stated the funds are out of the Operations 
Maintenance Capital Fund in the operations budget of the storm section. Craig stated staff is 
considering this to be a flooding issue, with about $40,000 in savings in repair and catch basins 
along Gleneagle, and between this and pipe repairs, we would like to bump this up from $150,000 
to $173,000 for construction with another $17,000 in contingency to be able to complete the Ladd 
Hill project. 

Jason informed the Council staff is proposing in the resolution to amend in three locations the 
dollar amount of $140,000 to read $173,000 and in the location indicating $10,000 for this to be 
changed to $17,000. 

Mayor Mays state he appreciated staffs work in negotiating and asked for Council questions. 

Councilor Butterfield asked if staff took the planting out of the bids and Jason replied staff 
compared all four bids without the planting items and we also compared them with the lowest bid 
item price submitted. In each scenario of comparison, C&M was still the apparent low bidder. Mr. 
Butterfield confirmed the planting will still be provided, Jason explained and stated the plantings 
would still be provided.  

Mayor Mays confirmed with Jason the proposed amendments to the resolution as changing all 
the references to $140,000 to indicate $173,000 (in three locations) and changing the reference 
of $10,000 to indicate $17,000 (in one location). Jason confirmed this was correct. 

Mayor Mays asked City Attorney Paul Elsner  if he was ok with this, Mr. Elsner replied yes. 

With no other Council questions or comments, Mayor Mays asked for a motion to amend. 

MOTION TO AMEND: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT TO AMEND 

RESOLUTION 2012-050 TO CHANGE IN THREE LOCATIONS THE $140,000 TO $173,000 

AND IN SECTION 2, CHANGE $10,000 TO $17,000. SECONDED BY COUNCILOR LINDA 

HENDERSON, ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2012-050 AS 

AMENDED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR BILL BUTTERFIELD, ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS 

VOTED IN FAVOR. 

5



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
September 18, 2012 
Page 5 of 8 

 
 Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

C. Resolution 2012-051 A Resolution in support of changing the name of the Tonquin Trail to 
Ice Age Tonquin Trail 
 
City Manager Joe Gall stated he would provide some background and we had guests available in 
the audience to answer any questions. Mr. Gall stated this request came to us from Tualatin and 
he received an email from Tualatin City Manager as we are partners in the Tonquin Trail project 
and said there are materials and support letters that were received after the Council meeting 
packet was produced and said they want to add the term “Ice Age” to the Tonquin Trail, (see 
record, Exhibit B) . 
 
Joe stated Paul Hennon, Tualatin’s Community Services Director and Yvonne Addington from the 
Tualatin Historical Society are present tonight to answer questions. Joe informed the Council 
other partnering jurisdictions have done this, including Washington County, Tualatin and he 
believed Wilsonville and Tigard. 
 
Mayor Mays asked if the Council had questions, no questions were asked. 
 
City Manager Gall informed the Council he received an email late this afternoon from Michelle 
Miller asking for a change in the resolution and said it’s too late to have this resolved for the 

Master Plan and to have some flexibility, both Washington and Clackamas County Board of 
Commissioners adopted the tag line: 
 
“We support adding the word Ice Age somewhere in the trail name, including the possibility of 

using those words as a byline or tagline that would follow the existing Tonquin Trail Name”.  

 

Mayor Mays confirmed this would be a change to Section I of the resolution. City Manager Gall 
replied yes. Mayor Mays asked for Council discussion, with none received, he made the following 
motion. 
 

MOTION TO AMEND: FROM MAYOR MAYS TO AMEND RESOLUTION 2012-051, TO 

REPLACE SECTION 1 WITH THE STATEMENT FROM JOE AS “We support adding the word 

Ice Age somewhere in the trail name, including the possibility of using those words as a byline or 

tagline that would follow the existing Tonquin Trail Name”. SECONDED BY COUNCIL 

PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT, ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

Councilor Henderson asked if we should amend the resolution title, Mayor Mays replied we can 
but it’s not necessary. City Manager Gall confirmed. 
 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2012-051 AS 

AMENDED, SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT, ALL COUNCIL 

MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

 

Mayor Mays thanked the guests from Tualatin for their attendance and support and addressed 
the next agenda item. 
 

6



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
September 18, 2012 
Page 6 of 8 

D. Resolution 2012-052 Ratifying the Sixteenth Amendment to the Sherwood Urban Renewal 

Plan to amend Plan Goals and update zoning in the Plan area 

 

Tom Pessemier Community Development Director explained this resolution is to ratify a decision 
made earlier this evening by the Urban Renewal Board and said the sixteenth amendment to the 
Urban Renewal Plan is to add and clean up language in regards to residential uses inside the 
Urban Renewal, specifically in regards to the Cannery property and addressing PUD, density 
transfers and other things. Tom stated that was adopted by the Urban Renewal Board and this 
resolution is to ratify the decision made by the Board. 
 
Mayor Mays asked for Council questions. 
 
Council President Grant confirmed this is the same thing we have been discussing and there’s 

nothing new. Tom Pessemier confirmed and said there’s a few items in regards to housing and 

the Urban Renewal Board may have other discussion tonight, but this is only in regards to 
density’s allowed in the residential pieces. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2012-052, 

SECONDED BY COUNCILOR BILL BUTTERFIELD, ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN 

FAVOR. 

 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 
 

E. Resolution 2012-053 A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to sign the Fiber Optic 

Access Agreement with the Oregon Department Of Transportation for the purpose of 

sharing fiber resources and connectivity of facilities 

 

IT Director Brad Crawford came forward and explained the agreement will allow the city to share 
fiber resources between the two agencies, and for Sherwood this means connectivity to WCCCA, 
which is something we’ve been working on for quite a while. Brad stated ODOT will get some 
improvements to traffic control signals in town and they will use our asset to do that.  

Brad indicated City Recorder Sylvia Murphy is providing the Council with a document (see record, 
Exhibit C) indicating an amendment to the agreement that was recently received that the City 
attorney’s office was working with ODOT on. Brad stated the amendment references 
indemnification and is highlighted in the amended copy, Section 4 through Section 7 under 
General Provisions. Brad informed the Council this additional language required by ODOT was 
jointly agreed upon and is something they put in all their contracts and was agreed upon by CIS 
and the League of Oregon Cities and said it is standard language.   

Mayor Mays commended Brad and said this is a great example of partnering with other agencies 
and providing additional benefits to our community and better utilizing resources. Mayor Mays 
stated there is no cost to the city as it is part of our federal public safety grant we received a few 
years ago and this will allow us to put in higher capacity, sophisticated radio antennas for our 
public safety people and give us more interoperability for our fiber network and ODOT is investing 
resources to make our signals function better. 

7



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
September 18, 2012 
Page 7 of 8 

Mayor Mays asked for Council questions, with none received he asked Brad for the time line. 
Brad replied he wasn’t sure and said ODOT was going out to bid on the project and we will get 

our piece done within the next month or two.  

Mayor Mays asked what staff needed from the Council as far as an amendment. The City 
Recorder replied the Council needed to motion to amend and accept the new exhibit provided 
(see record, Exhibit C). Brief discussion occurred regarding legal review of the exhibit and City 
Attorney Elsner stated the agreement was reviewed by Nancy Werner with his office and City 
Manager Gall stated Nancy was satisfied with the agreement.  

MOTION TO AMEND: FROM MAYOR MAYS TO AMEND RESOLUTION 2012-053 to 

REPLACE EXHIBIT A AS PROVIDED BY SYLVIA (City Recorder), SECONDED BY COUNCIL 

PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT, ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. 

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT DAVE GRANT TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2012-053 

AS AMENDED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ROBYN FOLSOM. ALL COUNCIL MEMBERS 

VOTED IN FAVOR. 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 
Mayor Mays commented regarding city bonds and City Manager Joe Gall asked Finance Director 
Craig Gibons to provide a report on bond opening and sale and the results of the refinancing. Craig 
stated we had a state loan and a bank loan, one was to help construct this building and one for the 
streets, these were from 2003 and 2006. Craig stated these loans had interest rates between 3-5.4% 
and we had five bidders and the winning bidder had a true interest rate of 1.67%. Councilor 
Henderson asked what’s the value of the two loans, Craig replied 5.2 million and said we will save 
about $60,000 a year in debt service, which is about 10% of the debt service on these loans.  

Mayor Mays and Council commended Craig and his department for the hard work performed.  

City Manager Gall asked Craig if the City has any other debt we wanted to refinance. Craig replied 
the financial advisor the city has worked with has reviewed all our debt and nothing else is “ripe” to 

be refinanced at this time.  

Craig Gibons stated we have repaid a lot of loans and refinanced a number of loans and have 
compacted the city’s portfolio.  

City Manager Gall reminded the Council of the Annual LOC Conference and stated he would be out 
of the office attending the LOC Board meeting as a Board member and attending the conference 
from Wednesday through Saturday, as was Mayor Mays through the Oregon Mayor’s Association.  

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Councilor Langer reminded of the 26th Annual Onion Festival to be held on October 13 at Archer Glen 
Elementary, 9am to 4pm and said the Firemen’s Chicken will be served and ran by Old Town Rotary. 
Councilor Langer stated the Chamber was looking for sponsors and volunteers. 
 

8



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
September 18, 2012 
Page 8 of 8 

Councilor Langer reminded of the upcoming Chamber Golf Tournament on September 27th and said 
people can register with Nancy at the Chamber. Councilor Langer said the Chamber was working on 
a poster map project that will identify businesses on the map and said people can sponsor and 
advertise on the map. He said the Chamber will be accepting input, sponsorships and any data for 
the map between November and January  Councilor Langer reminded that the Chamber offers a lot 
of big benefits to its members as well as phone service, which many may not be aware of.  
 
Councilor Butterfield reminded the Council of the partnership between the City of Sherwood and the 
Sherwood High School Booster Club, a partnership for the last seven years with the Booster Club 
paying the City $5000 a year for lighting that was installed on the high school football field and they 
made their last payment last week. Councilor Butterfield congratulated the Booster Club and the City 
for allowing the partnership.  
 
With no other business to address, Mayor Mays adjourned the Council meeting and reconvened to 
the URA Board of Director meeting. 

 

11. ADJOURN 

 
Mayor Mays adjourned at 8:00 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by: 
 
 
              
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder    Keith S. Mays, Mayor 

 

9



 

Ordinance 2012-012, Exec. Summary 
October 2, 2012 
Page 1 of 2 
 

            Council Meeting Date: October 2, 2012 
               Agenda Item:  Public Hearing 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
FROM:  Julia Hajduk, Planning Manager 
Through: Joseph Gall, City Manager  
Subject: PA 12-03 Cedar Brook Way TSP Amendment  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Summary: This is a City initiated Transportation System Plan (TSP) and Comprehensive Plan amendment to 
change the functional classification of Cedar Brook Way from a local to a collector road connecting Elwert to 
Handley.  This amendment also identifies one connection to Pacific Highway along this Cedar Brook Way 
extension, the ultimate location to be determined.  This amendment would modify Figures 8-1, 8-7 and 8-8 of 
the TSP to reflect this change.  The Planning Commission has held two public hearings and forwarded a 
recommendation of approval; the findings and analysis that the recommendation for approval was based on 
are included in Exhibit 1.  Exhibit 1-A is the proposed amended figures and Exhibit 1-B is an analysis from 
DKS identifying several options for refinement and the impacts on nearby intersections. 
 
Previous Council Action: Work Session – September 18, 2012 
 
Background/Problem Discussion: The TSP was updated in 2005.  Since that time, there have been five 
amendments; four for concept plan areas where changes and a fifth amendment to change the functional 
classification of Columbia Street (related to Cannery project) from a collector to a local street.  The City is 
planning to begin a comprehensive update of the TSP next year; however the City has determined that several 
issues need to be addressed sooner to help facilitate development and public infrastructure improvement.  
Specifically there are conflicts within the TSP related to Cedar Brook Way.  It appears the road is designated a 
local street and the local street connectivity map shows a connection to Elwert; however, the road is identified 
as a 3 lane road which is generally characteristic of a higher classification road.  In addition, the connection to 
an Arterial (Elwert and Pacific Highway) can only be made by a collector road or higher functional 
classification, thus creating conflicts between the classification and the connectivity and design for the road.  
This conflict has created uncertainty for potential developers. 

 
In addition, the City has obtained property at the northwest corner of the Kruger/Elwert intersection to help 
facilitate the realignment of that intersection.  This realignment is identified on the Washington County 
MSTIP3d list, indicating it will be funded within the next 5 years.  It is anticipated that funding for the design 
and construction of the realignment will be identified in the near future.  If that occurs, it would be most efficient 
and cost effective to identify and provide for a stub connection of Cedar Brook Way off of Elwert at that time.  
However, as the road is currently identified as a local street, the connection would not be permitted, per 
County standards. 
 
Alternatives: Approve, approve with modifications or deny the Planning Commission recommendation.  
 
Financial Implications: There will be a minimal cost associated with making the Code updates available 
online and providing informational materials to the public.  
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council hold a public hearing and determine whether to 
adopt the attached Ordinance approving the Planning Commission recommendation.  
 
Attachments:   

Ordinance  
Exhibit 1: Staff report to the Planning Commission dated August 7, 2012 

1-A. Proposed amendments identified in July 10, 2012 DKS memo 
1-B. Memo from DKS dated June 28, 2012 
1-C. ODOT letter dated August 6, 2012 

10



 

Ordinance 2012-012, Exec. Summary 
October 2, 2012 
Page 2 of 2 
 

1-D. DLCD e-mail dated August 2, 2012 
1-E. Letter from the Sherwood Elks Lodge dated August 5, 2012 
1-F. Testimony submitted by Jim Claus at August 14, 2012 PC meeting 
1-G. Testimony submitted by Jim Claus at August 14, 2012 PC meeting 
1-H. E-mail from Jim Claus dated September 4, 2012 
1-I. Testimony entered into record at September 11, 2012 PC meeting 
1-J. Testimony entered into record at September 11, 2012 PC meeting 
1-K. September 4, 2012 memo from Staff to the Planning Commission 

 

11



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2012-012 
October 2, 2012 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (Staff Report to PC, 8 pgs) and Exhibit 1-A (DKS Memo of proposed amendments, dated 
July 10, 2012,  3 pgs) 

 

 
 

ORDINANCE 2012-012 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM 
PLAN AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REGARDING THE FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION 
OF CEDAR BROOK WAY  
 

WHEREAS, The Transportation System Plan (TSP) is a 20 year planning document intended to 
be updated every 5-7 years; and  
 
WHEREAS, Sherwood’s TSP was adopted in 2005; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City intends to begin a comprehensive update to the TSP in the next few years; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that an amendment is needed prior to the next 
comprehensive update to the TSP in order to clear up discrepancies in the TSP regarding the 
functional classification and connectivity of Cedar Brook Way between Elwert Road and 
Handley Road; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City contracted with DKS Associates to study several alternatives prior to 
proceeding with proposed amendments; and  
 
WHEREAS, after an Open House and input from the Planning Commission, staff proceeded 
with noticing and processing an amendment to: 1) change the functional classification of Cedar 
Brook Way from a local to collector status road; 2) clarify that the road will connect to Elwert 
from Handley; and 3) clarify that there would be one road access to Pacific Highway; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments were reviewed for compliance and consistency with the 
Comprehensive Plan, regional and state regulations and found to be fully compliant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments were subject to full and proper notice and review and 
public hearings were held before the Planning Commission on August 14, 2012 and September 
11, 2012; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission voted to forward a recommendation of approval to the 
City Council for the proposed TSP amendment; and  
  
WHEREAS, the analysis and findings to support the Planning Commission recommendation are 
identified in the attached Exhibit 1, Staff Report to Planning Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on October 2, 2012 and determined that the 
proposed amendment to the TSP and Comprehensive Plan met the applicable Comprehensive 
Plan criteria and continued to be consistent with regional and state standards. 

 

12



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2012-012 
October 2, 2012 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (Staff Report to PC, 8 pgs) and Exhibit 1-A (DKS Memo of proposed amendments, dated 
July 10, 2012,  3 pgs) 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  
 
 Section 1. Findings.  After full and due consideration of the proposed amendment, the 
Planning Commission recommendation, the record, findings, and evidence presented at the 
public hearing, the Council adopts the findings of fact contained Exhibit 1 finding that TSP and 
Comprehensive Plan shall be amended as documented in Exhibits 1-A, DKS Memo of proposed 
amendments dated July 10, 2012.  
 
 Section 2. Approval.  The proposed amendments for TSP and Comprehensive Plan 
(PA) 12-03 identified in Exhibit 1-A is hereby APPROVED. 
 
 Section 3 - Manager Authorized.  The Planning Department is hereby directed to take 
such action as may be necessary to document this amendment, including notice of adoption to 
DLCD. 
 
 Section 4 - Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective the 30th day after its 
enactment by the City Council and approval by the Mayor. 
 
  
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 2nd day of October 2012.  
 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest:   
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder     
 
                AYE NAY 
         Clark       ____ ____ 
         Langer      ____ ____ 
         Butterfield  ____ ____ 
         Folsom      ____ ____ 
         Henderson ____ ____ 
         Grant        ____ ____ 
         Mays        ____ ____ 

13



 

 

 

CITY OF SHERWOOD Date: August 7, 2012 

Staff Report  
PA 12-03 – Cedar Brook Way Transportation System Plan Amendment 

 
 

To:  SHERWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

From:  PLANNING DEPARTMENT     
                                                                                                                         

    
      _____________________________               
 Julia Hajduk, Planning Manager 

 
 
Proposal overview:  This is a City initiated Transportation System Plan (TSP) and Comprehensive Plan 
amendment to change the functional classification of Cedar Brook Way from a local to a collector road 
connecting Elwert to Handley.  This amendment also identifies one connection to Pacific Highway along this 
Cedar Brook Way extension, the ultimate location to be determined.  The access location will be no greater 
than 990 feet from the Sunset and Meinecke intersections.  This amendment would modify Figures 8-1, 8-7 
and 8-8 of the TSP to reflect this change.  Exhibit A is the proposed amended figures and Exhibit B is an 
analysis from DKS identifying several options for refinement and the impacts on nearby intersections. 
 
 

I. OVERVIEW 
 

A. Applicant: This is a City initiated text amendment; therefore the applicant is the 
City of Sherwood. 

  

B. Location:  There are small parts of Cedar Brook Way currently constructed northwest of 
Pacific Highway and ultimately, it would extend from its current location at Handley 
southwest to connect at Elwert in the vicinity of the Elks Lodge property. 

 
G. Review Type: The proposed text amendment requires a Type V review, which involves 

public hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council.  The Planning 
Commission will make a recommendation to the City Council who will make the final 
decision.  Any appeal of the City Council decision would go directly to the Oregon Land Use 
Board of Appeals. 
 

H. Public Notice and Hearing:  Notice of the August 14th Planning Commission hearing on the 
proposed amendment was published in The Times on 8/2/12 and 8/9/12 and in the August 
edition of the Archer.  Notice was also posted in 5 public locations around town and on the 
web site on 7/24/12.  While this is a legislative amendment, courtesy notice was mailed to 
immediately affected property owners on 7/25/12.  

 
I. Review Criteria:  

The required findings for the Plan Amendment are identified in Section 16.80.030 of the 
Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code (SZCDC).  In addition, the 
amendment must be consistent with Goals 1, 2 and 12 of the Statewide Planning Goals and 
Chapter 6 of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
 

14



 

 

PA 12-03 Cedar Brook Way TSP amendment    Page 2 of 8 

 
 

J. Background: 
 
The TSP was updated in 2005.  Since that time, there have been five amendments; four for 
concept plan areas where changes and a fifth amendment to change the functional 
classification of Columbia Street (related to Cannery project) from a collector to a local 
street.  The City is planning to begin a comprehensive update of the TSP next year; 
however the City has determined that several issues need to be addressed sooner to help 
facilitate development and public infrastructure improvement.  Specifically there are 
conflicts within the TSP related to Cedar Brook Way.  It appears the road is designated a 
local street and the local street connectivity map shows a connection to Elwert; however, 
the road is identified as a 3 lane road which is generally characteristic of a higher 
classification road.  In addition, the connection to an Arterial (Elwert and Pacific Highway) 
can only be made by a collector road or higher functional classification, thus creating 
conflicts between the classification and the connectivity and design for the road.  This 
conflict has created uncertainty for potential developers. 
 
In addition, the City has obtained property at the northwest corner of the Kruger/Elwert 
intersection to help facilitate the realignment of that intersection.  This realignment is 
identified on the Washington County MSTIP3d list, indicating it will be funded within the next 
5 years.  It is anticipated that funding for the design and construction of the realignment will 
be identified in the near future.  If that occurs, it would be most efficient and cost effective to 
identify and provide for a stub connection of Cedar Brook Way off of Elwert at that time.  
However, as the road is currently identified as a local street, the connection would not be 
permitted, per County standards.  

 
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

The City posted notices in five locations around the city and provided courtesy mailed notice to directly related 
property owners in the vicinity of the road extension.  Notice was also published in the Times on August 2nd 
and 9th and in the August Archer.  As of the date of this report, no comments have been provided other than 
what was provided at the Planning Commission work session held on June 26, 2012 prior to formally initiating 
the Plan Amendment.   
 
 

III. AGENCY/DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 
 

The City requested comments from affected agencies.  All original documents are contained in the planning 
file and are a part of the official record on this case. The following information briefly summarizes those 
comments: 
 

 The Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) provided comments recommending 
that the City look at its Collector Street standards to ensure that they meet the current needs of the 
City. 

 
Staff Response:  The City plans on beginning an update to the TSP to fully evaluate the transportation 
system within the next year.  In the meantime, as noted within this report, we believe that the 
amendment will better meet the needs of the City and the intent of the existing TSP policies.  We 
believe that this amendment addresses a conflict and error in the existing TSP that did not clearly 
identify the connection as a collector.  

 

15



 

 

PA 12-03 Cedar Brook Way TSP amendment    Page 3 of 8 

 
 

 Oregon Department of Transportation provided a letter which is attached as Exhibit C stating that they 
are generally supportive of local street connectivity and that they have determined this amendment will 
have no significant impacts to the state highway facilities. 

 
 Sherwood Engineering Department has been a partner in the review and processing of this proposal 

and therefore has not provided formal additional comments. 
 
Washington County, Metro, Clean Water Services, Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue (TVF&R), Kinder Morgan. 
Pride Disposal, Bonneville Power Administration, The Sherwood Building Department, Portland General 
Electric, Northwest Natural Gas, and Raindrops to Refuge were provided the opportunity to comment on this 
application but did not provide written or verbal comments. 

 
 

IV.  APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT CODE CRITERA 
 

16.80.030 – Review Criteria 
A. Text Amendment 
An amendment to the text of the Comprehensive Plan shall be based upon a need for such an 
amendment as identified by the Council or the Commission. Such an amendment shall be consistent 
with the intent of the adopted Sherwood Comprehensive Plan, and with all other provisions of the 
Plan, the Transportation System Plan and this Code, and with any applicable State or City statutes and 
regulations, including this Section. 

 
The amendment is needed because the existing TSP is not clear regarding the intended status of Cedar 
Brook Way.  The road is identified as a 3 lane road (figure 8-7) which is typically the dimensions of a 
neighborhood route or larger; however as a local street, it would not be eligible for SDC and TDT credits.  This 
has led to uncertainty from property owners and potential developers in the area regarding whether the road is 
eligible for SDC and TDT credits.  The amendment to clarify the functional classification of Cedar Brook Way 
as a collector street is consistent with Chapter 6, Section C, Table 1 by aligning the classification to reflect the 
actual use of the Street.  Table 1 states that: 
 
 Collector Streets - Provide both access and circulation within and between residential and 

commercial/industrial areas.  Collectors differ from arterials in that they provide more 
of a citywide circulation function and do not require as extensive control of access 
(compared to arterial).  Serve residential neighborhoods, distributing trips from the 
neighborhood and local street system.  Collectors are typically greater than 0.5 to 
1.0 miles in length. 

 Local Streets -      Sole function of providing access to immediate adjacent land.  Service to “through 
traffic movement” on local street is deliberately discouraged by design. 

  
As demonstrated in the DKS memo, this road connection will provide for more than local trips because it 
provides an alternative to 99W and the ability to avoid the Sunset and Meinecke intersections.  As envisioned, 
the road would be about .5 miles in length between Elwert and Handley (Cedar brook Way is already a 
collector from Handley to Meinecke/99W), consistent with the collector.  In addition, the anticipated traffic is 
within the range of a collector at 2000 vehicles per day. 
 
The amendment is consistent with Chapter 6 of the comprehensive Plan as discussed further in this report 
under Section V. 
 
The amendment is consistent with the intent of the TSP.  As noted earlier, the TSP is not clear regarding the 
actual intent of Cedar Brook Way but it is clear that the plan was that it would be designed to be larger than a 

16



 

 

PA 12-03 Cedar Brook Way TSP amendment    Page 4 of 8 

 
 

traditional local street as demonstrated on figure 8-7 and 8-4 (there is no 3 lane local street figure).  In 
addition, the TSP at figure 8-8 shows connections of this road to Elwert, however as a County Arterial, it can 
only be accessed via a collector level street or higher.  Is it clear throughout the TSP that increase 
connectivity, especially in this area, is desired.  The DKS memo demonstrates that traffic operations are 
improved with the increased connectivity, which can only be accomplished with the collector level road.  
Alternatively, the TSP could be amended to remove the connections to Elwert and the confirm that the status 
was a local street; however that negatively impacts the traffic operations and provided limited access options 
for the properties along the highway that are affected by this road connection. 
 
FINDING: As discussed above, the change is consistent with the intent of the collector road and is 
consistent with the applicable comprehensive plan goals and policies. 
 
B. Map Amendment 
An amendment to the City Zoning Map may be granted, provided that the proposal satisfies all 
applicable requirements of the adopted Sherwood Comprehensive Plan, the Transportation System 
Plan and this Code, and that: 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals and policies of the 
Comprehensive Plan and the Transportation System Plan. 

 

2. There is an existing and demonstrable need for the particular uses and zoning 
proposed, taking into account the importance of such uses to the economy of the City, 
the existing market demand for any goods or services which such uses will provide, 
the presence or absence and location of other such uses or similar uses in the area, 
and the general public good. 

3. The proposed amendment is timely, considering the pattern of development in the area, 
surrounding land uses, any changes which may have occurred in the neighborhood or 
community to warrant the proposed amendment, and the availability of utilities and 
services to serve all potential uses in the proposed zoning district. 

4. 4.   Other lands in the City already zoned for the proposed uses are either unavailable 
or unsuitable for immediate development due to location, size or other factors. 

 
The applicable elements of the above standard are 1 and 3.  As discussed in the section below, the proposed 
amendment is consistent with the comprehensive plan and TSP policy regarding the definition of the functional 
classification. 
 
Regarding “3”, the amendment is timely because it will reduce existing uncertainty which could help the 
properties develop or re-develop.  In addition, the re-alignment of the Kruger/Elwert intersection is anticipated 
to be funded in the near future at which point it will be necessary to determine definitively whether this will be a 
collector road connecting to Elwert.  If it is not a collector road, according to County standards, a road 
connection in this vicinity would not be possible which would significantly impact the ability of the properties, 
especially the property directly east of Elwert, to develop. 
 
FINDING: As discussed above the proposed amendment is consistent with the TSP and comprehensive plan 
elements. 
 
C. Transportation Planning Rule Consistency 
1.   Review of plan and text amendment applications for effect on transportation facilities. Proposals 
shall be reviewed to determine whether it significantly affects a transportation facility, in accordance 
with OAR 660-12-0060 (the TPR). Review is required when a development application includes a 
proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan or changes to land use regulations. 

17



 

 

PA 12-03 Cedar Brook Way TSP amendment    Page 5 of 8 

 
 

 
2.   "Significant" means that the transportation facility would change the functional classification of an 
existing or planned transportation facility, change the standards implementing a functional 
classification, allow types of land use, allow types or levels of land use that would result in levels of 
travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional classification of a transportation facility, or 
would reduce the level of service of the facility below the minimum level identified on the 
Transportation System Plan. 
 
3.   Per OAR 660-12-0060, Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan or changes to land use regulations 
which significantly affect a transportation facility shall assure that allowed land uses are consistent 
with the function, capacity, and level of service of the facility identified in the Transportation System 
Plan. This shall be accomplished by one of the following: 

a. Limiting allowed uses to be consistent with the planned function of the 
transportation facility. 

   

b. Amending the Transportation System Plan to ensure that existing, improved, 
or new transportation facilities are adequate to support the proposed land 
uses. 

   

c. Altering land use designations, densities or design requirements to reduce 
demand for automobile travel and meet travel needs through other modes. 

 
The analysis by DKS included as Exhibit B demonstrates that the scenario to connect Elwert to Handley via a 
collector road, which this amendment does, provides the least negative impact to the existing intersections at 
full build-out.  Therefore, this amendment will make the transportation system better than full build-out if the 
amendment were not approved.  Changing the functional classification of Cedar Brook Way to a collector 
roadway is appropriate based on traffic circulation and function.  In addition, as previously noted, while 
technically this action will amend the TSP, it actually clarifies conflicting elements of the TSP regarding 
connectivity and design.  For all of these reasons noted, this amendment is consistent with the TPR. 
 
The City sent notice of this proposed functional classification modification to the State Department of Land 
Conservation and Development (DLCD), the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) and Washington 
County.  
 
FINDING: As noted above, while the proposed amendment would change the transportation system plan, the 
result would have no negative impact on the transportation system. The amendment would allow a road to be 
built consistent with its actual intended function. 
 
 

V. APPLICABLE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN POLICIES 
 
B. GOALS, POLICIES, AND STRATEGIES 
Goal 1: Provide a supportive transportation network to the land use plan that provides opportunities 
for transportation choices and the use of alternative modes serving all neighborhoods and 
businesses. 

Policy 1 – The City will ensure that public roads and streets are planned to provide safe, 
convenient, efficient and economic movement of persons, goods and services between 
and within the major land use activities. Existing rights of way shall be classified and 
improved and new streets built based on the type, origin, destination and volume of 
current and future traffic. 

 

18



 

 

PA 12-03 Cedar Brook Way TSP amendment    Page 6 of 8 

 
 

Policy 2 – Through traffic shall be provided with routes that do not congest local streets and 
impact residential areas. Outside traffic destined for Sherwood business and industrial 
areas shall have convenient and efficient access to commercial and industrial areas 
without the need to use residential streets. 

 
Policy 3 – Local traffic routes within Sherwood shall be planned to provide convenient circulation 

between home, school, work, recreation and shopping. Convenient access to major out-
of-town routes shall be provided from all areas of the city. 

 
FINDING: The amendment and future extension of Cedar Brook Way will provide for connections to 
residences and commercial activities within causing congestion on local streets and without requiring 
additional trips onto the already congested arterial street simply for service within this area.  The amendment 
is consistent with these policies. 
 
Goal 2: Develop a transportation system that is consistent with the City’s adopted comprehensive land 
use plan and with the adopted plans of state, local, and regional jurisdictions. 

Policy 5 – The City shall adopt a street classification system that is compatible with Washington 
County Functional Classification System for areas inside the Washington County 

 
FINDING: The amendment is not inconsistent with the County TSP and would result in a transportation 
system (in regards to connectivity) that is more consistent with the existing TSP by ensuring that a connection 
to Elwert road, a County arterial, is possible. 
 
Goal 3: Establish a clear and objective set of transportation design and development regulations that 
addresses all elements of the city transportation system and that promote access to and utilization of 
a multi-modal transportation system. 
 

Policy 1 – The City of Sherwood shall adopt requirements for land development that mitigate the 
adverse traffic impacts and ensure all new development contributes a fair share toward 
on-site and off-site transportation system improvement remedies. 

 
Policy 2 – The City of Sherwood shall require dedication of land for future streets when 

development is approved. The property developer shall be required to make full street 
improvements for their portion of the street commensurate with the proportional benefit 
that the improvement provides the development. 

 
Policy 4 – The City of Sherwood shall adopt a uniform set of design guidelines that provide one or 

more typical cross section associated with each functional street classification. For 
example, the City may allow for a standard roadway cross-section and a boulevard cross 
section for arterial and collector streets. 

 
Policy 5 – The City shall adopt roadway design guidelines and standards that ensure sufficient 

right-of-way is provided for necessary roadway, bikeway, and pedestrian improvements. 
 
FINDING: The City has already implemented these policies and the amendment does not change this.  The 
amendment does remove conflicts within the existing TSP regarding lane numbers, connectivity and 
classification which ensures that the City can better implement these policies when development is proposed. 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 

 

PA 12-03 Cedar Brook Way TSP amendment    Page 7 of 8 

 
 

VI. APPLICABLE STATEWIDE PLANNING GOALS 
 
Goal 1 (Citizen Involvement) 
 

FINDING:  Staff utilized the public notice requirements of the Code to notify the public of this proposed 
plan amendment.  The City’s public notice requirements have been found to comply with Goal 1 and, 
therefore, this proposal meets Goal 1.  In addition, the City hosted an open house prior to beginning 
the formal plan amendment process to get input and feedback on potential amendments and held a 
work session with the Planning Commission on June 26, 2012 for further discussion.  At the work 
session, the Planning Commission allowed the public to speak on the potential amendments prior to 
providing staff with feedback on proceeding with the public notice for the amendment. 

 
Goal 2 (Land Use Planning) 
 

FINDING:  The proposed amendment, as demonstrated in this report is processed in compliance with 
the local, regional and state requirements. 

 
Goal 3 (Agricultural Lands) 
Goal 4 (Forest Lands) 
Goal 5 (Natural Resources, Scenic and Historic Areas and Open Spaces) 
Goal 6 (Air, Water and Land Resources Quality) 
Goal 7 (Areas Subject to Natural Hazards) 
Goal 8 (Recreational Needs) 
Goal 9 (Economic Development) 
Goal 10 (Housing) 
Goal 11 (Public Facilities and Services) 

 
FINDING:  The Statewide Planning Goals 3-11 do not specifically apply to this proposed plan 
amendment; however, the proposal does not conflict with the stated goals. 
 

Goal 12 (Transportation) 
FINDING:  As discussed earlier in this report, the proposed amendment is consistent with the 
“Transportation Planning Rule” which implements Goal 12.   
 

Goal 13 (Energy Conservation) 
Goal 14 (Urbanization) 
Goal 15 (Willamette River Greenway) 
Goal 16 (Estuarine Resources) 
Goal 17 (Coastal Shorelands) 
Goal 18 (Beaches and Dunes) 
Goal 19 (Ocean Resources) 

 
FINDING:  The Statewide Planning Goals 13-19 do not specifically apply to this proposed plan 
amendment; however, the proposal does not conflict with the stated goals. 

 
 
VII. RECOMMENDATION 
 
Based on a review of the applicable code provisions, agency comments and staff review, staff finds that the  
Plan Amendment is consistent with the applicable criteria and therefore, staff recommends that the Planning 
Commission forward a recommendation of APPROVAL of PA 12-03 – Cedar Brook Way TSP amendment, 
Handley to Elwert Road. 

20



 

 

PA 12-03 Cedar Brook Way TSP amendment    Page 8 of 8 

 
 

VIII. EXHIBITS 
 

A. Proposed amendments identified in July 10, 2012 DKS memo 
B. Memo from DKS dated June 28, 2012 
C. ODOT letter dated August 6, 2012 

 
 
 
 
 

End of Report 

21



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit 1-A 
October 2, 2012, 1 of 3

22



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit 1-A 
October 2, 2012, 2 of 3

23



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit 1-A 
October 2, 2012, 3 of 3

24



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 1 of 51

25



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 2 of 51

26



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 3 of 51

27



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 4 of 51

28



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 5 of 51

29



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 6 of 51

30



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 7 of 51

31



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 8 of 51

32



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 9 of 51

33



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 10 of 51

34



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 11 of 51

35



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 12 of 51

36



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 13 of 51

37



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 14 of 51

38



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 15 of 51

39



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 16 of 51

40



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 17 of 51

41



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 18 of 51

42



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 19 of 51

43



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 20 of 51

44



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 21 of 51

45



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 22 of 51

46



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 23 of 51

47



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 24 of 51

48



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 25 of 51

49



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 26 of 51

50



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 27 of 51

51



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 28 of 51

52



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 29 of 51

53



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 30 of 51

54



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 31 of 51

55



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 32 of 51

56



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 33 of 51

57



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 34 of 51

58



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 35 of 51

59



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 36 of 51

60



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 37 of 51

61



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 38 of 51

62



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 39 of 51

63



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 40 of 51

64



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 41 of 51

65



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 42 of 51

66



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 43 of 51

67



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 44 of 51

68



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 45 of 51

69



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 46 of 51

70



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 47 of 51

71



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 48 of 51

72



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 49 of 51

73



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 50 of 51

74



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit B 
October 2, 2012, Page 51 of 51

75



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit C 
October 2, 2012, Page 1 of 1

76



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit D 
October 2, 2012, Page 1 of 1

77



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit E 
October 2, 2012, Page 1 of 1

78



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit F 
October 2, 2012, Page 1 of 2 79



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit F 
October 2, 2012, Page 2 of 2 80



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 1 of 63

81



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 2 of 63

82



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 3 of 63

83



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 4 of 63

84



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 5 of 63

85



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 6 of 63

86



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 7 of 63

87



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 8 of 63

88



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 9 of 63

89



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 10 of 63

90



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 11 of 63

91



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 12 of 63

92



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 13 of 63

93



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 14 of 63

94



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 15 of 63

95



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 16 of 63

96



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 17 of 63

97



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 18 of 63

98



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 19 of 63

99



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 20 of 63

100



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 21 of 63

101



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 22 of 63

102



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 23 of 63

103



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 24 of 63

104



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 25 of 63

105



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 26 of 63

106



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 27 of 63

107



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 28 of 63

108



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 29 of 63

109



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 30 of 63

110



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 31 of 63

111



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 32 of 63

112



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 33 of 63

113



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 34 of 63

114



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 35 of 63

115



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 36 of 63

116



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 37 of 63

117



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 38 of 63

118



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 39 of 63

119



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 40 of 63

120



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 41 of 63

121



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 42 of 63

122



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 43 of 63

123



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 44 of 63

124



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 45 of 63

125



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 46 of 63

126



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 47 of 63

127



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 48 of 63

128



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 49 of 63

129



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 50 of 63

130



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 51 of 63

131



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 52 of 63

132



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 53 of 63

133



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 54 of 63

134



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 55 of 63

135



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 56 of 63

136



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 57 of 63

137



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 58 of 63

138



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 59 of 63

139



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 60 of 63

140



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 61 of 63

141



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 62 of 63

142



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit G 
October 2, 2012, Page 63 of 63

143



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit H 
October 2, 2012, Page 1 of 2

144



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit H 
October 2, 2012, Page 2 of 2

145



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit I 
October 2, 2012, Page 1 of 2

146



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit I 
October 2, 2012, Page 2 of 2

147



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 1 of 24

148



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 2 of 24

149



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 3 of 24

150



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 4 of 24

151



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 5 of 24

152



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 6 of 24

153



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 7 of 24

154



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 8 of 24

155



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 9 of 24

156



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 10 of 24

157



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 11 of 24

158



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 12 of 24

159



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 13 of 24

160



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 14 of 24

161



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 15 of 24

162



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 16 of 24

163



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 17 of 24

164



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 18 of 24

165



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 19 of 24

166



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 20 of 24

167



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 21 of 24

168



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 22 of 24

169



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 23 of 24

170



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit J 
October 2, 2012, Page 24 of 24

171



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit K 
October 2, 2012, Page 1 of 5

172



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit K 
October 2, 2012, Page 2 of 5

173



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit K 
October 2, 2012, Page 3 of 5

174



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit K 
October 2, 2012, Page 4 of 5

175



Ordinance 2012-012, Exhibit K 
October 2, 2012, Page 5 of 5

176


	City Council Packet Cover 10.02.12
	City Council Agenda for 10.02.12
	09.18.12 City Council Meeting Minutes-DRAFT
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Cedar Brook Way-EXEC. SUMMARY 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Cedar Brook Way-DRAFT 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Cedar Brook Way-staff report to PC 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Exhibit A 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Exhibit B 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Exhibit C 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Exhibit D 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Exhibit E 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Exhibit F 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Exhibit G 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Exhibit H 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Exhibit I 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Exhibit J 10.02.12
	Ordinance 2012-012 Amending TSP PA 12-03 Exhibit K 10.02.12



